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PROCEEDTING

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: Good afternoon.
We're here in Docket DE 16-277, which is
Liberty Utilities (Granite State Electric)
Corp.'s Calendar Year 2015 Reliability
Enhancement and Vegetation Management Plan
results and reconciliation proceeding. And
we're here pursuant to a Supplemental Order of
Notice, because the original Order of Notice
had to be reissued because of a failure to
publish.

It does appear that a fair bit of
work has been done in between. So, there's
some new materials which were filed just a few
days ago.

And I don't think there's anything
else I want to stay before we take appearances.

MR. SHEEHAN: Good afternoon,
Commissioners. Mike Sheehan, for Liberty
Utilities. And the people with me with all be
testifying. So, I will introduce them then.
Thank you.

MR. DEXTER: Paul Dexter, appearing

on behalf of the Commission Staff, and with me

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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is Rich Chagnon.

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: All right. How
are we going to proceed? Mr. Sheehan.

MR. SHEEHAN: Thank you. First, I'd
like to formally apologize for the oversight
that caused the need for the Supplemental Order
of Notice and the delay in hearings.

First, I'd like to mark three
exhibits for identification: Exhibit 1 being
the original filing of March 15, 2016, with
attachments; Exhibit 2 being the Technical
Statement of March 30, 2016; and Exhibit 3
being the revised filing of May 6, with
attachments. We'll have the witnesses walk
through those and explain each of them.

(The documents, as described,
were herewith marked as
Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2, and
Exhibit 3, respectively, for
identification.)

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: All right.
Well, why don't you have the witnesses take the
stand, and we'll deal with any other

administrative matters.

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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6
[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

All right. Are there any other
preliminary matters we need to deal with?
MR. SHEEHAN: I put on the desk —--
the Bench a color copy of Page 17. It's not a
new exhibit, it's simply a color copy of what's
in the filing from Friday. The computer
version is in color, so this is just to match.
CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: Yes. I did
note, when reviewing this, this graph in the
filing I had, it was all black, white, and
gray. And it was a little difficult to tell
one gray from another.
All right.
MR. SHEEHAN: That's all I had for
preliminary matters. Thank you.
CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: Thank vyou.
Could you swear the witnesses in please.
(Whereupon Heather M. Tebbetts,
Christian P. Brouillard,
Jeffrey Carney, and Steven E.
Mullen were duly sworn by the
Court Reporter.)
HEATHER M. TEBBETTS, SWORN

CHRISTIAN P. BROUILLARD, SWORN

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

JEFFREY CARNEY, SWORN
STEVEN E. MULLEN, SWORN

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SHEEHAN:

Q.

Okay. We'll start with Mr. Brouillard and Mr.
Carney. If you could each introduce yourself,

your position with the Company, and what

involvement you had with this filing. Mr.
Carney.
(Carney) My name is Jeff Carney. I work for

Liberty Utilities. I am the Program Manager
for Inspections and Vegetation Management. And
I prepared all the Vegetation
Management-related submittals.

Mr. Brouillard.

(Brouillard) My name 1is Christian Brouillard.

Mike's off.

(Brouillard) Excuse me. My name 1is Christian
Brouillard. I am the Director of Engineering
for Liberty Utilities Service Corporation. I

prepared the REP/VMP Report, and also the joint
testimony with Mr. Carney.
And, Mr. Carney, you played a role in both the

report and that testimony as well?

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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8
[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

(Carney) Correct.

Do you have the original filing and the revised
filing in front of you?

(Carney) Yes.

And the original filing is "Exhibit 1" and the
revised filing "Exhibit 2". The revised filing
includes another copy of your testimony with a
couple of changes, is that correct?

(Carney) Correct.

(Mullen) Could I just -- for the record, I
think you're referring to "Exhibit 3" for the
revised filing.

I'm sorry, 1 and 3.

(Carney) Correct.

The same with you, Mr. Brouillard?
(Brouillard) That 1is correct.

And, for the testimony as corrected, are there
any other changes to the testimony or the
report, other than what's reflected in Exhibit
37

(Carney) No, there aren't.

(Brouillard) No, there are not.

And, as for your testimony, both of you, if I

were to ask you the same gquestions today as are

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

in that testimony, again, Exhibit 3, would your
answers be the same?

(Carney) Yes.

(Brouillard) Yes.

And, Mr. Brouillard, if you could just give me
a three-sentence description of what's the
purpose of the report that you prepared with
Mr. Carney.

(Brouillard) The purpose of the report is to
detail the results of the Veg. Management and
Capital Reliability Enhancement Program, as
well as present the results of our five-year
and 2015 reliability statistics.

Next, Ms. Tebbetts, I'll turn to you. Your
name, your position with the Company, and what
involvement you had with this filing please.
(Tebbetts) Yes. My name is Heather Tebbetts,
and I work for Liberty Utilities Service
Company. I'm an Analyst in our Rates and
Regulatory Department. And I'm responsible for
rate-related services for Granite State
Electric.

And do you have the exhibits in front of you as

well?

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

(Tebbetts) Yes.

First, to Exhibit 1, which was your testimony
and attachments. Did you prepare that
testimony?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

And, other than some changes in the
attachments, were there any changes to your
testimony from what appears in Exhibit 17
(Tebbetts) The only changes are further with
the amended March 30th and May 6th filings.
Okay. The Exhibit 2 is the March 30 filing.
Why don't you describe what that is.

(Tebbetts) So, the March 30th filing is a
technical statement with updated schedules that
explain updates for retroactive tax law, and
also updates for a formula error in one of the
schedules.

And explain Exhibit 3, does that -- strike
that. What is the -- what's contained within
Exhibit 3 that you had involvement with?
(Tebbetts) With Exhibit 3, we made revisions to
the technical statement and we updated the
schedules to reflect a few items. One of the

items was the information from the FERC Form 1

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

that provides municipal property taxes. We
also updated -- just want to make sure I get
the information correct -- we also updated the
capital —-- the expenditures were correct, but
we updated the revenue requirement. And we
also updated the forecasted revenues to
calculate the annual revenue requirement moving
forward.

As for your testimony, Ms. Tebbetts, and with
the changes reflected from Exhibit 1 and
Exhibit 3, are there any other changes to your
testimony that you'd like to make this morning
—-— or, this afternoon?

(Tebbetts) No.

And, 1f you were asked the same questions today
that are in that written testimony, would your
answers be the same as they have been amended?
(Tebbetts) Yes.

Mr. Mullen, your name, occupation, and
involvement with this filing.

(Mullen) My name is Steven E. Mullen. I'm the
Manager of Rates and Regulatory for Liberty
Utilities Service Corp. Related to this

filing, I was involved in the review of various

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

documents that you see here, as well as
participated in preparing the technical
statement that's Exhibit 3.

And can you tell us what the purpose -- what
goals did you have in mind when you prepared
and filed what is now Exhibit 37

(Mullen) One of the primary reasons for filing
that was due to the delay in the hearing
schedule. We had originally proposed rates
effective May 1. And, with the postponement of
the hearing, it became necessary to change that
effective date to June 1. While we were doing
that, we then had additional updated
information from the FERC Form 1, as

Ms. Tebbetts previously testified. So, we took
the opportunity to update that information as
well.

And were there any changes related to a meeting
with Staff?

(Mullen) Yes. I believe it was April 13th, we
had a meeting with Staff to go through the
filings that had been made to that point.

Staff pointed out some things, like there were

some references on some of the spreadsheets

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

that needed to be updated. And there were a
couple other questions that we took into
account when we were preparing -- when
preparing this update. So, you know, we
appreciated having that meeting and having --
and Staff's review, and we took those into
account.

Mr. Mullen, in Ms. Heather's [Tebbett's?]
testimony, she refers, and this is Exhibit 1,
at Bates 41, she talks about the accrual issue
that has occurred with this filing over the
past couple years. Could you explain what the
issue is and what the Company is proposing to
do going forward?

(Mullen) Sure. Related to accruals —-- well,
actually, let me step back. From its
inception, this plan has always been done on a
cash basis. Which basically means that,
whatever you spend, you physically spend in a
year, that's what gets recorded as an expense.
What happens sometimes, at the end of a year,
is we may not have received all the invoices
from a contractor, whether it be for trimming

work or some other type of expense work. If

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

those invoices are received and paid the
following year, they get included in the
following year's totals. So, what we'd like to
do is, going forward, we would like to include
accruals on an annual basis, which will give a
better matching of the expenses for a
particular year with the activity for the year.

As relates to 2015, the year that's being
reconciled here, at the beginning of the year
there was, I think, approximately $273,000 of
work for 2014 that was paid in 2015, and that
was included in the 2015 totals. Likewise, at
the end of 2015, it's my understanding that
there's roughly about the same amount of
invoices that were paid in 2016 that relate to
2015 work.

If you include the accruals, what would
happen each year, after it's implemented, at
the beginning of the year you would reverse the
prior year's accrual, and you would have an
accrual at the end of the year, which would
give you a better match for the year.

However, we didn't want to go ahead and

just make that change for this year without

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

first having the discussion. Because the first
year you do it, you don't have a reversal at
the end of the -- at the beginning of the year,
but you would have an accrual at the end of the
year. So, rather than just go ahead and do it,
we figured we'd have the discussion first.

And part of the request today is to ask for
approval to make that change, understanding
there's going to -- for 2016, there will be a
little bit of a mismatch, as you say, between
the actual expenditures and the work?

(Mullen) Well, for 2016, it would have some
2015 invoices included in the total. And,
then, what happens at the end of the year all
depends on where we stand with getting invoices
from contractors. If everything comes in
before the end of the year and we pay it before
the end of the year, there won't be an accrual.
But we won't know that until we get to the end
of the year.

And this issue does not address when the work

was done. All the work is done in the calendar
year. It addresses when the accounting of the
payments for the work is made. Is that

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

correct?
(Mullen) That's correct.

MR. SHEEHAN: Those are all the
questions I have. Thank vyou. They're
available for cross-examination.

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: Mr. Dexter.

MR. DEXTER: Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q.

While we're on the issue of the accrual, so, if
I understand what you're saying, the impact on
the 2015 reconciliation, had you done the
accrual basis, would really be no impact,
because the figure at the beginning of the year
and the figure at the end of the year are
roughly the same you said. Is that correct?
There would be no impact?

(Mullen) They're roughly the same, yes. That's
correct.
And one other preliminary matter. On the basis
of the updated filing, the rates are now
proposed for effect June 1lst, I believe you
said, is that right?

(Mullen) That's correct.

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

Q.

And are you proposing that these rates stay
into effect for eleven months or twelve months?
(Mullen) Depends what part of the rate you're
talking about. The capital part of the rate,
the change to the rates for revenue
requirements for capital work is a permanent
change. The change in the rates for the 0&M
portion of the work, that would be an
eleven-month -- we'd propose it for the
eleven-month period to get us back on the same
May 1lst schedule.

Thank vyou. So, I wanted to talk about the
reliability statistics that are in -- they were
in the report, Page 7 through 9. And could one
of the witnesses give a summary as to the
reliability statistics and how 2015 compared
with past years?

(Brouillard) Yes. I will do that. I'm sorry,
what page are you on? I wasn't sure if you
were on the Calendar Year 2015 Reliability
Results graph or the -- I have Bates Page 147
Yes. I think it's addressed starting on Bates
Page 13 in Exhibit 3. It says "Reliability

Results Calendar Year 2015"?

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

(Brouillard) Yes. Thank vyou. During 2015, we,
in summary, we had a very good reliability
year. The weather was —-- the weather was quite
favorable. I believe, for eleven out of the
twelve months, we met our reliability targets.
Actually, we had the best year since Granite
State Electric began keeping reliability
records some twenty years ago. We do, as 1is
depicted in the -- in one of the subsequent
graphs, we do track against the five-year
reliability average, in order to temper out

some of the wvariable effects of weather and

other events that -- other one-off events that
may occur during the year. And, as 1is noted,
our SAIDI came in at around 60 -- yes, 61

minutes, and our SAIFI came in at just about
0.6. You know, again, you know, a very good --
very good year for us.

In general, it was a favorable year in New
England, and even nationwide, with respect to
the weather. I would hope that we'd continue
to enjoy the same level of success. But,
historically, you know, that would probably

tell us otherwise.

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

So, even with the exclusions that are
referenced in your testimony, the weather still
plays an impact, is that your testimony?
(Brouillard) Yes, it does.

And would you attribute any of the "good year",
as you put it, to this very program that we're
here talking about today?

(Brouillard) I absolutely would. The
installation, in particular, the installation
of spacer cable and tree wire, which is a
tree-resistant conductor in both cases, wversus
bare wire installation, what we're doing 1is,
we're replacing bare wire, three-phase, with
spacer cable or tree wire, again, a
tree-resistant conductor. That undoubtably has
reduced our outage rate, you know, due to trees
over time. We have seen the positive effect of
this installation, both during what I'll say
"blue sky" outage days, where there could be,
you know, limbs -- you know, limbs falling due
to the stresses of growth or due to the effect
of past storms. And we've also seen the
positive effect of these installations during

storms, areas that have traditionally

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

experienced main line outages during wind
events during the summer and other severe storm
events, but we've seen pretty go outage-free
during those particular weather conditions.

So, that's been a big plus.

As has the installation of single phase
reclosers on our system to prevent feeder
lockouts from happening. Rather than an entire
circuit tripping out, we're only losing, you
know, that portion of a circuit downstream from
a pole-top single phase recloser.

Further, the installation of single phase
reclosers gives us the potential, rather than
tripping all three phases of a distribution
main line to clear a downstream fault, there's
a high potential that we'll only trip one or
two of those phases, preserving the remaining
customers on the phase that stays alive
downstream of that protective device.

And these three items that you described, are
those part of the 0&M expenses in this filing
or are they part of the capital expenses —--
capital expenditures?

(Brouillard) Those are part of the capital

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

expenditures in the filing.
Do you foresee a time where these capital
expenditures can be handled in base rates
rather than step adjustments?
(Brouillard) I foresee —-—- I'll answer that
question in two parts. I do foresee a time
where we'll look to shift from bare conductor
replacement with spacer cable and tree wire to
other mechanisms to continuously improve
reliability. We're not at that point yet. Our
overall goal is to essentially outage-proof
each distribution circuit from the substation
out to the first interrupting device on the
main line. "Outage—-proof" being replacing the
bare conductor with spacer cable or tree wire.
I don't anticipate that would be completed for
about another five years. And, again, at that
time we would look to, you know, shift the
focus to other areas to continuously improve
reliability.

The second part of my answer is the
Company has found that the Reliability
Enhancement Program has been very helpful to

not only provide us with a focused initiatives
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

to improve reliability, but it has also
provided us with a forum that we can -- we can
discuss those improvements with Staff ahead of
the investment year, you know, give us some of
our insight, and also solicit Staff input into
the program, both in terms of a forward
forecast and a backward-looking results
perspective. So, we have found it very
helpful, from that particular viewpoint, to
have this program in place.

Thanks. I want to turn to some different
topics now. And I just want to start with an
overview of the expenses and the items that are
going to be passed through to rates.

So, I wanted to start by establishing that
we're talking about basically $2 million of
operating expenses and $1.3 million of capital
costs in this filing, is that correct?
(Brouillard) Can you reference what table
you're looking at please?

Sure. Well, for the $2 million in operating
expenses, I would reference HMT-1, Page 2 of
12.

(Mullen) If I could just jump —-- if I could

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

just jump in here? Is your question about

the —-- when you say the "2 million", the total
that was spent or the total that we're seeking
recovery for?

Well, what does the 1.99 million represent?
(Mullen) That's the total that was spent prior
to receiving any credits from FairPoint. But,
for purposes of recovery, once you receive —--
once you take that into account, the credits
from FairPoint, for work that was done on their
behalf, then you also have to subtract from
that the amount that's in base rates, which is
the "1.36 million" that is shown on that same
page, on Line 4.

Okay. So, that's exactly what I wanted to
point out. So, starting with HMT-1, Page 2 of
12, we're starting with $1.99 million in
expenditures, we've established that. And is
it correct that you've got 1.36 —-- 1,360,000 of
this built into base rates?

(Mullen) Yes. And that's been the way since
the inception of the program.

Right. And, so, the next line on this schedule

is "Reimbursement from FairPoint". Is the
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

"$288,000" figure an accurate representation of
what's been reimbursed?

(Mullen) That is the amount that was invoiced
to FairPoint. I think that there's also, in
testimony we had a discussion about this, with
some mediation discussions that were going on
with FairPoint, and either one of the other
witnesses or Mr. Sheehan can give an update as
to the status of that. But the 288,000 is the
exact amount of the invoices that were given to
FairPoint during the year.

Okay. And, then, Line 6 on this page —-- I'm
sorry, Line 7 on this page then is the amount
that you're seeking recovery for in this year's
clause, 1s that correct? That's "$346,184"?
(Tebbetts) Yes. That's partially correct. I
want to just note that, on Page —-- Bates Page
52, Page 52, Page 1 of 4 -- I apologize, Page 2
of 4, Bates Page 53, there's also an interest
calculation --

Yes. No, I was going to get to that. I was
just curious about the overall O&M expense
we're looking at in this case, $346,0007

(Tebbetts) Yes. That's correct.

{DE 16-277} {05-10-16}
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

And, then, I wanted you to turn to HMT-2,
Page 2 of 4, which is Bates 53.
(Tebbetts) Okay.
And I wanted you, if you would, to confirm that
that "$346,000" number is at the top of that
page?
(Tebbetts) Yes, on Line 1.
Okay. And, then, you go through some
calculations that involve interest and
reconciliation, is that roughly correct?
(Tebbetts) Yes.
Okay. And, then, to develop the adjustment
factor, you divide the -- what's now $345,000
by forecasted sales to come up with an
adjustment factor, is that right?
(Tebbetts) Yes. That's correct.
Okay. And, then, if we were to go to HMT
[HMT-27?], Page 4 of 4.

CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: Mr. Dexter, it's

really helpful if you give us Bates page

numbers.

MR. DEXTER: Oh, sorry.

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: I know that
one's just two pages away. But, 1f you get in
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

that habit,
MR. DEXTER: Absolutely.
CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: -— we'll be able

to keep up with you.

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q.

This one's Bates 55. And the factor that we
just talked about appears in column (f), is
that correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

And that gets applied to all the various rates
that you've got listed there on this page, is
that right?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. So, that's kind of how the 0&M portion
of this finds its way onto customer's bills?
(Tebbetts) Yes.

Good. Okay. And I wanted to do the same thing
with the capital costs. So, I'm going to go
back to HMT-1, Page 3 of 12. And that's Bates
41.

(Tebbetts) I have "Bates 40".

Oh, sorry.

(Mullen) You said "Page 3 of 12"? In my book,

that's Page Bates 42.
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

(Tebbetts) Oh.

It is HMT-1, Page 3 of 12. And, my apologies,
it's Bates 42. It's the one that deals with
the revenue requirement for the capital costs.
(Tebbetts) Yes, I'm there.

So, again, we started the discussion by saying
that there's roughly $1.3 million of capital
costs at issue in this case or proposed for
recovery in this case. And I just want to
point out that that number appears on Line 1,
under the last column on the right, "Actual
Calendar Year 2015". Is that the same number
we're talking about?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And, if you were to take this same
schedule and jump down to Line 44, you go
through a rate base calculation that factors in
this $1.3 million, is that correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

And, the rate base calculation is simply last
year's plant -- I'm sorry, the plant in service
calculation on Line 45 is simply last year's
plant, plus the $1.3 million, eqguals this

year's plant of 7.8 million, roughly, is that
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correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And, then, to complete the rate base
calculation, you subtract out accumulated
depreciation and deferred tax reserve to get a
year—-end rate base on this schedule, is that
correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And, to that, you apply a rate of
return, to get a return on rate base, and that
shows up on Line 53, correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And, then, to that number you add in
depreciation and property taxes on the new
plant, correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And that gives us a total revenue
requirement of one -- I'm sorry, an annual
revenue requirement of roughly a million
dollars, 1,032,000. So, that's the revenue
requirement on the current plant, correct?
(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And, then, what's requested in this case

is "175,355", that's Line 62 on this schedule,
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is that right?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And the way we get 175,000 in this case
is we look at what was built into rates last
year, subtract that out, and add in this
year's, 1is that correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. So, the additional revenue requirement
associated with this plant is $175,000 roughly?
(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. Now, to trace that $175,000 through the
customer bills, I want to turn to HMT-2, Page 1
of 4.

(Tebbetts) Are you on Bates Page 527

Which is Bates 527

(Tebbetts) Okay. Thank vyou.

Correct. And, so, 1n this instance, unlike the
O&M expenses where you developed a factor to
apply to rates, in this case, you're
calculating an increase to base rates, is that
correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And, to get the percentage to apply to

distribution rates, you're taking the $175,000
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that we talked about, making some adjustments
to it, which we'll get to in a minute, and then
dividing that number by a forecast of base
distribution revenues to get an adjusted
increase of 0.21 percent, is that correct?
(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. So, I wanted to talk about the
difference then between the $175,000 -- well,
let's come back to that. I just want to finish
this analysis. So, this 0.21 percent, if I
then look at HMT-2, Page 4 of 4, which is Bates
557

(Tebbetts) Yes.

I see a schedule with all of your rates down
the left-hand column, and I see column (b),
which is "Proposed Distribution Increase". And
that 0.21 percent is the 0.21 percent we've
been talking about, is that right?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Okay. And, just to complete this, I want to
trace these two rate changes to the bill impact
schedule that you provided, which is HMT-4,
Page 57.

(Tebbetts) Yes.
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If I were to compare these rates, would I find
mathematically that they have been increased by
0.21 percent?

(Tebbetts) No. You would not.

Okay. Why is that?

(Tebbetts) Because there are two components in
these. The first component is the 0.21
percent, but then there's also the addition of
the adjustment factor of $0.00038, so —-—- in the
distribution piece. So, it's not an overall
0.21 percent increase, it's a two-part
increase.

And the second part that you mentioned, the
factor would only apply to the lines
"Distribution Charge", is that correct?

There's actually two lines for Distribution
Charge, 1s that right?

(Tebbetts) Yes. Actually, and the 0.21 percent
increase for capital expenditures would also
only apply to those two lines.

(Mullen) If I could just correct that, it also
applies to the Customer Charge.

Okay. So, if I were to take the Customer

Charge and do the math on those two numbers
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there, would I find a 0.21 percent increase?
Because, frankly, I'm not finding that. I just
want you to check that.

(Mullen) And I think the explanation for this
is, if you —-- looking on Bates 57, you will see
the first column of rates is "May 1lst, 2016
Current Rates". If you flip back two pages to
Bates 55, you will see the first column is
"Approved June 1, 2016 Base Distribution
Charges". That relates to changes that were
made and recently approved by secretarial
letter in DE 13-063. What we wanted to show on
Bates 57 was, for anybody that's currently a
customer, what they're getting right now in
their bills is the May 1lst rates. The rates
from 13-063 that were already approved, the
customers haven't seen yet. So, on Bates 57,
we said "Here's what May 1lst rates are. Here's
what a customer is going to see as a difference
on June lst." That takes into account this
REP/VMP filing, and it takes into account what
was already approved in 13-063.

But I think your answer just conflicted with

itself. So, let me ask it another way. Does
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Bates 57 isolate just the increase associated
with the programs that are at issue in this
case or does it include other things?

(Mullen) It has the increases from this case,
as well as the other increases 1in distribution
rates that were already reflected in 13-063.
And the impacts from that were in a separate —-
in a separate document.

For purposes of doing this calculation on
this page, we wanted to be able to say "what is
a customer going to see as a difference in
their bill on June 1lst, as compared to prior to
June 1st?"

Okay. So, the 11.35 Customer Charge, on Bates
57, includes both of those increases, is that
what you're saying?

(Mullen) Correct.

Okay.

(Mullen) And that 11.35 goes back to Bates 55,
you will see that in Column (g).

So, would you be able to calculate for us,
maybe not today, but maybe at some point in the
near future, the isolated impact of this filing

on a customer's bill?
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(Mullen) As compared to anything else, is what
you're saying?
Well, —-- well, I guess I would ask you to
compare it to a logical starting point.
(Mullen) Well, and we took as a logical
starting point what customers currently have in
bills now. I certainly understand your
question and say "just related to this, as
compared to any other rate changes, what is the
impact?" We can certainly do that.
Well, I guess what I would suggest is, is I
would suggest that a way to present this, to
isolate the impact on this case, would be to
leave column 1 as it is, where it says "May 1",
and the customer charge is "$11.29". And, in
column 2, instead of including two rate
increases, I would isolate this rate increase,
and that way we would be able to see what the
impact is of just this proposal which is before
the Commission.

CHATIRMAN HONIGBERG: Can I make an
alternative suggestion? Since I think what you
said, Mr. Mullen, 1is that the June 1 rates

include something approved in a different
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

docket, that you show that as the second
column, and then a third column that shows the
increase off of that, because the
already-approved-by-secretarial letter is --
that's going to happen on June 1, according to
what you've just said. And the change that
you're requesting here could be shown off both
the May rate, the first column, and the already
approved June rate, the second colunmn.

Is that —-- Mr. Dexter, is that an
acceptable alternative or do you want to see
something —--

MR. DEXTER: Well, I think --

CHATIRMAN HONIGBERG: -— want to see
it broken out further or differently?

MR. DEXTER: I think that the rates
are proposed for effect in this case on
June 1st also. So, —-

CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: But, if you're
trying to isolate this request,

MR. DEXTER: Right.

CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: —— you want to
compare it to what's approved for June 1, do

you not?
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MR. DEXTER: Either way. I would
just like to see what the impact of this case
is. And I think they could do it either on
that May 1lst rates without that other increase.

CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: But I think they
have already shown off of May 1lst including
both.

MR. DEXTER: Right.

CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: And, if you show
it without the already approved, you'll be
showing a rate that doesn't exist, and will
never exist, isn't that right? Right,

Mr. Mullen?

WITNESS MULLEN: Right. We can
certainly show the progression, from May 1lst to
the already approved June 1lst and then to this,
and show the increments related to each one.

MR. DEXTER: I think that would be
helpful.

WITNESS MULLEN: Okay.

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: So, we're
turning that into a record request, is that
right, Mr. Dexter?

MR. DEXTER: That would be
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appreciated.

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: All right. So,
that will be "Exhibit 4".

(Exhibit 4 reserved)

CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: Mr. Sheehan, you
understand what has just happened?

MR. SHEEHAN: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN HONIGBERG: All right.

WITNESS MULLEN: It's one of those
things, when you have lots of rate changes
going on at the same time, how do you show it?
And, you know, you can show it six ways to
Sunday, but it's a matter of, you know, however
you want to do it, we will do it.

CHATRMAN HONIGBERG: No, I
understand, Mr. Mullen. I mean, you talked
about starting from a logical point, and
Mr. Dexter was talking about a different
logical point, but both are logical. And, so,
we'll get the information that everybody is
looking for, I think that will -—-

BY MR. DEXTER:
Q. Okay. I'd like to go back to HMT-1, Page 3 of

12 we were just on. And that's Bates 52, in
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[WITNESSES: Tebbetts~Brouillard~Carney~Mullen]

Exhibit 3. And I would ask the panel -- we had
talked about the $175,000 being the revenue
requirement associated with capital in this
case, and the fact that only $72,000, on Line
1, is being built into the rate increase. And
I would ask the witnesses to address the
differences between -- you know, what makes up
the difference between those two numbers,
roughly $103,000°7

(Tebbetts) Yes. If you go back to Bates Page
42, there's a couple of things t